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PURPOSE. PASSION. PROSPERITY. February 21, 2014

Honorable Mayor and Members of the
City Council
City of Round Rock, Texas

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Round Rock, Texas
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, is submitted herewith. The City’s
Finance Department prepared this report. Responsibility for both the accuracy of
the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including
all disclosures rests with the City. We believe the data, as presented, are accurate
in all material aspects and are presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth
the financial position and results of operations of the City as measured by the
financial activity of its various funds. All disclosures necessary to enable the
reader to gain the maximum understanding of the City's financial affairs have
been included.

The City Charter requires an annual audit of the books of account, financial
records and transactions of all departments of the City by independent certified
public accountants selected by the City Council.

Brockway, Gersbach, Franklin & Niemeier, P.C., Certified Public Accountants,
have issued an unqualified (“clean”) opinion on the City of Round Rock’s
financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2013. The independent
auditors’ report is located at the front of the financial section of this report.

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) can be found immediately
following the report of the independent auditors. The MD&A is a narrative
introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements.
This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be
read in conjunction with it.

City of Round Rock Profile

The City of Round Rock, Texas, established in 1851, is a municipal corporation
incorporated under Article X1, Section 5 of the Constitution of the State of Texas
(Home Rule Amendment). The City operates under a Council-Manager form of
government with six council members and a mayor. The City Manager is
appointed by the City Council and is responsible to them for managing and
administering all City affairs.
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The Finance Director is appointed by the City Manager. The Finance Director is responsible for
supervising the operations of the Finance Department. This Department maintains all accounting
records of the City.

The financial reporting entity (the government) includes all the funds of the primary government
(the City of Round Rock as legally defined) as well as its component unit. Component units are
legally separate entities for which the primary government is financially accountable. The City
provides a full range of services, which includes police and fire protection, parks and library,
construction and maintenance of infrastructure, planning and community development,
convention and tourism activities and general administrative services. In addition, the City owns
and operates a waterworks, sports venue, and sewer utility system. These activities are included
in the accompanying financial statements.

Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are in substance part of the primary
government’s operations and included as part of the primary government. Accordingly, Round
Rock Transportation and Economic Development Corporation revenues are reported in a special
revenue fund of the City while capital improvements are reported in a capital project fund of the

City.

Annual budgets are legally adopted for the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service
Fund and the Proprietary Funds. Capital Projects Funds have no binding annual budget. Project-
length financial plans are adopted for all capital projects; accordingly, no comparison of budget
to actual is presented in the financial statements.

Budgetary control is maintained at the department level by the encumbrance of estimated
purchase amounts prior to the release of purchase orders to vendors. Purchase orders which
result in an overrun of balances are not released until additional appropriations are made
available. The City had no material encumbrances as of September 30, 2013.

Significant Local Economic Events

The City of Round Rock is the largest City located within Williamson County and adjacent to the
City of Austin. Williamson County topped Forbes Magazine's list of America's Fastest-Growing
Counties in September 2013. “The population of Williamson County, on the outskirts of Austin,
has expanded 7.94% since 2010, the strongest growth in the nation over that period ... over the
past 25 years the county’s residents have enjoyed the Lone Star state’s fastest rate of income
growth and the sixth-highest in the nation. With a strong tech scene — Dell is headquartered in the
Williamson town of Round Rock — the county has increased employment by 73% since 2000,
the third highest rate in the country.”

The Austin-Round Rock area ranked second in the Milken Institute's list of Best-Performing
Cities in America for 2012. The area moved up from fourth in 2011. The Best Performing Cities
index includes both long-term (five years) and short-term (one year) measurements of
employment and salary growth. Austin and Round Rock were singled out because of technology
companies like Dell, Apple and IBM and expansion plans by Samsung. The Austin-Round
Rock-San Marcos Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) has more than doubled in population to
1.8 million since 1990.



Round Rock ranked 8th in CNBC'’s list of suburbs with the best mix of affordable housing, good
schools, educated neighbors, low crime, employment, and reasonable commutes. The current
unemployment rate for the City is 5.0%, and remains lower than the Austin metro and statewide
rates 5.3% and 6.3%, respectively. As of the end of fiscal year 2013, Round Rock’s population
was estimated at 104,900.

Clearly, this kind of area growth sets the stage for not only economic opportunities like job
creation and sales tax generation, but also increased demands for City services and infrastructure.
Many of the issues Round Rock faces continue to be regional issues such as population growth,
traffic concerns, road construction and water/wastewater availability, as such, Round Rock
makes efforts to address these issues both at the local and regional level. To adequately prepare
for the effect of this activity on the City, much effort goes into planning and funding
infrastructure and service programs. Strategic planning, biennial budgeting and multi-year
capital improvement project programming have become important tools in planning for the
financial impact of a fast-growing community.

General fund sales tax receipts for fiscal year 2013 were approximately $49.7 million. This
figure represents an increase of 5% compared to the prior year. The sales tax revenue category
produced 55% of the total revenue available to the City’s general fund for this year, while the
property tax levy produced 26%. The sales tax as a revenue figure is subject to economic cycles
and discretionary buying characteristics of the consumer and, accordingly, must be monitored
and projected carefully.

The City understands that diversification of Round Rock’s economy is key to financial stability.
The retail market place is consistently improving and the Central Texas area has been noted for
its strength. The major destination retail hubs provide continued expansion and broaden Round
Rock’s economy. These include Round Rock Premium Outlets, Swedish furniture maker IKEA,
and other national and regional retailers.

As a result of the City’s economic development focus several additional major businesses have
recently located to Round Rock. These include Bass Pro Outdoor World, ClearCorrect LLC,
Theramsol, and Insys Therapeutics.

Bass Pro Shops, an outdoor retailer specializing in hunting, fishing, camping and other outdoor
gear, will locate the company’s seventh Texas store in Round Rock. The 104,000-square-foot
store will be located at I-35 between County Road 111 and east Chandler Road. It will feature the
popular Uncle Buck’s Fishbowl and Grill and is scheduled to open in 2015.

ClearCorrect LLC, a leading manufacturer of clear aligners for thousands of dentists nationwide
is relocating its corporate headquarters and manufacturing facility to Round Rock. ClearCorrect
brings with them 100 new jobs and will invest $1,500,000 in improvements to their location.

Theramsol, a subsidiary of D.M.A. Enterprises, will develop a 27-acre upscale business park
anchored by a new world headquarters facility. The 55-year-old company is the inventor and
leading global manufacturer of steam bath equipment for homes, hotels, spas and resorts.



Insys Therapeutics, a local pharmaceutical manufacturer will expand their employment by 400
percent and move into a larger facility in Round Rock. The company, which currently employs
11 people at its current manufacturing facility in Round Rock, will be relocating to a 53,000-
square-foot facility and plans to be operational by August 2014. Insys will hire an additional 30
people over the next four years at an average salary of $50,000. Insys' minimum total investment
for the expansion will be $10.5 million.

H-E-B, the brand new 125,000-square-foot store represents the fifth H-E-B Round Rock location
for the San Antonio-based grocery retailer. H-E-B expects to hire more than 300 employees to
staff the store.

Emerson moved into Round Rock 750 highly skilled, professional employees, and expects to
create another 125 positions over the next three years. Emerson is expecting to occupy 10,000
room nights annually at area hotels. This is the international headquarters and technology center
for the company, which delivers automation technologies and services to the chemical, oil and
gas, refining, pulp and paper, life sciences, and other industries.

Round Rock has emerged as a hub for health education with the influx of new and expanding
hospitals and medical education facilities.

St. David’s Round Rock Medical Center, originally constructed in 1983, provides comprehensive
health services to residents of Williamson and surrounding counties. Services include the Health
and Vascular Center, inpatient capacity of 177 beds, the Women’s Center and a comprehensive
emergency room. St. David’s was designated a Level Il Trauma Center in Spring 2012.

Scott & White Healthcare, a major regional health care organization, completed a 58,000 square
foot expansion to its 68-acre health care facility. This complex has a specialty clinic that offers a
wide variety of care options from birth to adulthood, as well as a 76-bed technologically
advanced hospital offering heart and vascular, orthopedic, diagnostic imaging, and women’s and
children’s services.

The Seton Medical Center Williamson is a 365,000 square foot facility and is a certified Level I
trauma center. The campus includes a 181-bed hospital, ambulatory surgery center, the first of
several medical office buildings and a diagnostic and imaging center. The campus is planned to
accommodate future expansions, and the hospital could eventually expand to 350 beds over the
next 10 to 15 years.

To complement the healthcare activities Round Rock is now home to several health education
facilities. The City recognizes that a highly educated workforce is an important component of a
well-rounded economic foundation. In 2005, Texas State University opened the Round Rock
Higher Education Center (RRHEC) in northeast Round Rock. The purpose of this facility is to
make quality education and workforce training accessible to the residents of Round Rock and
surrounding communities. With Texas State University offering baccalaureate and graduate
programs, and the Austin Community College offering general core classes, through the RRHEC,
this campus will become a full-service college. Texas State School of Nursing has a state-of-the
art nursing building.



The Texas A&M University System Health Science Center’s clinical campus in Round Rock
opened in 2010, and includes both educational space and clinical facilities. The first building is
134,000 square feet and includes both educational space and clinical facilities. This campus
provides clinical training for an average of 70 third- and fourth-year medical students at the
Texas A&M Health Science Center College of Medicine in Round Rock under 500 local
physician faculty members. The Texas A&M Health Science Center College of Nursing has 40
nursing students at the Round Rock campus. The college offers the second degree Bachelor of
Science in Nursing in Round Rock where students complete their upper-division nursing
curriculum in 15 months.

The Austin Community College (ACC) campus in northeast Round Rock opened in 2010 and
offers extensions of programs currently offered at other ACC campuses. Curriculum offerings
include nursing, radiology, sonography, medical laboratory, surgical technology, and applied
health programs. The campus covers 598,000 square feet with maximum enrollment of 11,000
students and is ACC’s largest campus.

The local hotel/motel industry continues to be a particularly vibrant industry for Round Rock.
Currently, 25 hotels with over 2, 000 rooms open for business maintaining solid occupancy rates.
This strong industry bodes well for the hotel occupancy tax collections which support local
tourism events and debt service for the Dell Diamond Convention Center complex and the
Round Rock Sports Center.

In 2011, voters approved an increase in the Hotel Occupancy Tax rate to help fund the Sports
Complex (Venue Project) facility. Funding has been provided by the issuance of $7.5 million
H.O.T. revenue bonds and existing sources. The Round Rock Sports Center is a flexible indoor
sports facility with a total of 83,000 square feet providing 6 basketball courts, 12 volleyball
courts and more than 47,000 square feet of open, playable space. Its seating capacity is 1,300.
The facility opened in January 2014.

The Convention and Visitor’s Bureau (CVB) administers and manages the City’s tourism efforts
and long-range tourism plans. The Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund budget includes funding for the
CVB as well as continued funding for tourism events and debt service associated with Dell
Diamond/Convention Center complex.

With several area sports facilities in place and statewide events being planned, Round Rock
continues its marketing strategy as the “Sports Capital of Texas.” Tourism is an expanded
component of the City’s overall economic development strategy.

To continue to meet the projected service demands of existing and new customers, the water and
wastewater utility faces a significant capital improvement program. However, in order to fund
the capital improvement program and to meet increasing system demand, small, multi-year rate
increases were implemented. Phased-in rate increases were competed in FY2010. Even with
these prior rate increases, Round Rock water and wastewater rates continue to be among the
lowest in the region.



A half-cent component of the local sales tax rate went into effect January 1, 1998 and the
proceeds are to be used for streets, roads, drainage and other related transportation system
improvements, including the payment of maintenance expenses associated with such authorized
projects. The additional revenues are not part of the operating budget but are budgeted and spent
by a non-profit industrial development corporation established expressly to oversee the above
purposes with the approval of the City Council. Collections for the past year exceeded $ 16.5
million. These funds will help provide major improvements to the City’s transportation system,
significantly benefiting the local and regional economy. In November of 2011 the citizens
approved the use of Type B Funds for economic development related efforts. With economic
development identified as the City’s top strategic priority, the City and the Round Rock Chamber
of Commerce have partnered to update the City’s economic development plan.

Because traffic congestion is one of the central problems of Round Rock and the region, road
projects are a high priority. Project completions over the past year have brought significant
improvement to local and commuter traffic, thereby helping to protect the region’s economic
well being. Many other road projects, also funded with local and state funds are in planning or
construction phases. Total current expenditure estimates for these various projects approximate
$91 million. The local portion, $87 million, is funded largely by the one-half percent sales tax
mentioned earlier. The City’s road development is closely following the Comprehensive
Transportation Master Plan which developed a short-term (10 year), a long-term (20 year) and
ultimate term (build-out) transportation plans to serve the community needs. These efforts, along
with the development of funding sources for transportation improvements, discussed above, are
indicative of the City’s commitment to preserving its economic base and quality of life.

Relevant Financial Policies

Accounting System and Controls

It is the policy of the City to maintain a General Fund balance equivalent to at least 33% of
operations. Working capital in the Water/Wastewater Utility Fund is also maintained at a similar
level of operations. Balances in excess of the above levels are earmarked for future uses or
reduced to the target levels over an appropriate length of time.

In developing and evaluating the City's accounting system, consideration is given to the adequacy
of internal accounting controls. Internal accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance regarding: (1) the safeguarding of assets against loss from
unauthorized use or disposition; and (2) the reliability of financial records for preparing financial
statements and maintaining accountability for assets. The concept of reasonable assurance
recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and
(2) the evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

All internal control evaluations occur within the above framework. We believe that the City's
internal accounting controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of
proper recording of financial transactions.



Long-Term Financial Planning

An underlying budgetary influence is the City’s business model. Approximately 55% of the
General Fund revenue is provided by the sales tax. A half-cent component of the two-cent local
sales tax rate exists for the sole purpose of reducing the property tax rate. The result is a heavy
reliance upon the sales tax as a revenue source for operations and reduced reliance upon the
property tax. The sales tax is a less stable revenue source than the property tax but provides
more discretion to the taxpayer. Because of this revenue makeup, the City tends to carry higher
fund balances, estimate sales tax revenue conservatively and introduce new programs somewhat
more cautiously until projected revenue levels are established. The City is also more attentive to
the health of its economy because of the reliance upon commerce to produce the sales tax.

The City recognizes its reliance on sales tax revenue and continues to take measures to
effectively manage this significant revenue source. The City’s financial management policy is
designed to reduce operational reliance on sales tax generated from Dell Computer, Inc. and
redirect some of those funds for long-term capital improvement projects thus reducing the
amount of debt to be issued. This long-term approach to property tax rate management will
allow the City to continue to benefit from the presence of Dell in the community for years to
come. In addition, the City proactively monitors legislation at both the state and federal levels
that may affect the collection of sales tax.

Prospects for the Future

A growing population directly influences the housing industry and, ultimately, the property tax
base. Although the number of housing starts is more moderate than in the past, it is important to
note that Round Rock’s extra-territorial jurisdiction (ETJ) contains over 9,000 acres of
undeveloped property which will influence the demand for City services into the future.

Economic development and diversification continues to be the City’s top strategic priority. The
City and the Round Rock Chamber of Commerce partnered to update the City’s economic
development plan. In accordance with this increased strategic emphasis on economic
development, the economic development agreement between the City and the Chamber of
Commerce was also updated and enhanced. These funds are leveraged with the Chamber of
Commerce Momentum funding to create a public/private partnership for economic development
priorities. This partnership continues to yield a new, inspired approach to economic development
for Round Rock.

As we look to the future, there are several key initiatives in process now that will shape the
development of Round Rock for the next decade. Significant investment in the medical industry
including several state-of-the-art medical facilities expansions, combined with the impact of
multiple higher education centers, will provide community development and unlimited
opportunities. Not only will these initiatives shape the physical development of the City but they
will also influence the knowledge base and creativity in the community.



With the City’s natural commercial attractiveness, a strong economic development plan and a
strengthening economy, the future of the community is bright.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded
a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Round Rock,
Texas for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012.
This was the twenty-seventh consecutive year that the City has achieved this prestigious award.
In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must
satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement
Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for
another certificate.

In addition, the City of Round Rock also received the GFOA’s Distinguished Budget
Presentation Award for its annual budget document for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2012.
In order to qualify for the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award, the government’s budget
document had to be judged proficient as a policy document, a financial plan, an operations guide
and a communications device.

The presentation of this report on a timely basis could not be accomplished without the efficient
and dedicated services of the entire staff of the Finance Department. We would like to express
our appreciation to all members of the Department who assisted and contributed to its
presentation. Acknowledgement is also given to Brockway, Gersbach, Franklin & Niemeier,
P.C. for their valuable assistance in production of the report. We would also like to thank the
Mayor and Council members for their interest and support in planning and conducting the
financial operations of the City in a responsible and progressive manner.

Respectfully submitted,

£ 7 =4

Steve Norwood
City Manager

Cheryl Delaney
Finance Director
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BROCKWAY
r1 GERSBACH
L‘ FRANKLIN &

NIEMEIER, PC.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Honorable Mayor and
City Council ‘
City of Round Rock, Texas

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Round Rock, Texas as of and
for the year ended September 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(CONTINUED)

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Round Rock, Texas, as of September 30, 2013, and the respective
changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 21 through 34 and the schedule of funding progress on page 101 be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements,
is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Round Rock, Texas’ basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and
individual fund financial statements and schedules, and statistical section, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required
part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules and the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

-18 -



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(CONTINUED)

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 21, 2014, on
our consideration of the City of Round Rock, Texas’ internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering City of Round Rock, Texas’ internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

M Cribtd, Foons. 4 7m 74

Temple, Texas
February 21,2014
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CITY OF ROUND ROCK, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

The discussion and analysis of the City of Round Rock’s financial performance provides an overview
and analysis of the City’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013. It should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying transmittal letter and the accompanying basic financial
statements.

Financial Highlights

o The assets of the City of Round Rock exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent
fiscal year by $ 826,453,068 (net position). Of this amount, $ 200,135,320 (unrestricted net position)
may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to its citizens and creditors.

e The City’s total net position increased by $ 15,144,508, after restatement of the beginning net
position balance as disclosed in Note 1 (S). Approximately 43 percent of this increase is a result of
contributions from developers and other entities.

e As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Round Rock’s governmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of $ 130,410,528, a decrease of $ 38,405,210 in comparison
with the prior year. The decrease is primarily due to scheduled spending in the City’s capital project
programs. Additionally, an adjustment was made to prior period fund balance of $ 8,274,808 and is
fully described in Note 1 (S). Approximately 29.6 percent of the total fund balance amount,
$ 38,604,781, is available for spending at the government’s discretion (unassigned fund balance).

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was
$ 38,604,781, or 44.3 percent of the total general fund expenditures.

e The City of Round Rock’s total debt decreased by $ 13,351,346 during the current fiscal year.
The change was due to regularly scheduled debt principal retirement along with savings from a
refunding bond issue as more fully described in Note IV (F) to the financial statements.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Round Rock’s basic
financial statements. The City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This
report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements
themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the City of Round Rock’s finances, in a manner similar to a
private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City of Round Rock is
improving or deteriorating.
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CITY OF ROUND ROCK, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Overview of the Financial Statements (Continued)

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses
are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods
(e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Round Rock that
are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City include general government,
public safety, public works and culture and recreation. The business-type activities of the City of
Round Rock include a water and sewer utility and a golf course.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Round Rock,
like other local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories:
governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on the near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term
financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the City’s near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison
between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City of Round Rock maintains 26 individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund, debt service fund, the Round Rock
Transportation and Economic Development Corporation (RRTEDC) revenue and project funds, the
self-financed construction fund and the 2007 General Obligation Bond fund, all of which are considered
to be major funds. Data from the other 20 governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the
form of combining statements elsewhere in the report.
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CITY OF ROUND ROCK, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Overview of the Financial Statements (Continued)

Proprietary funds. The City of Round Rock maintains two different types of proprietary funds.
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its water and
sewer utility and for its golf course. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate
and allocate costs internally among the City’s various functions. The City uses an internal service fund
to account for its self-funded health insurance program. Because this service predominantly benefits
governmental rather than business-type functions, it has been included within governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements,
only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the
water and sewer utility and for the golf course. The water and sewer utility is considered a major fund
of the City. Since the golf course fund is the only remaining enterprise fund, it is being presented as a
major fund even though it does not meet the criteria of a major fund established in GASB Statement
Number 34. The internal service fund is a single presentation in the proprietary fund financial
statements.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the government. The Public Improvement Districts agency fund is reported in the statement of
fiduciary net position. The resources accounted for in this fund are excluded from the government-wide
financial statements because these funds are not available to finance the City’s operations.
Consequently, the City is responsible for ensuring that these resources are used only for their intended
purpose.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other information. The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor
governmental funds and individual fund schedules are presented immediately following the notes to the

financial statements.

Additional information on capital assets used in the operation of governmental funds is provided
following the individual fund schedules.
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CITY OF ROUND ROCK, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. For the City of Round Rock, assets exceeded liabilities by $ 826,453,068 as of
September 30, 2013.

The largest portion of the City’s net position (68.2%) reflects its investments in capital assets (e.g., land,
buildings and improvements, improvements other than buildings, machinery and equipment and
construction in progress), less any debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses
these capital assets to provide services to its citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for
future spending. Although the City’s investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should
be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the City’s net position (7.6%) represents resources that are subject to external
restriction on how they may be utilized. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position $ 200,135,320
may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

As of September 30, 2013 and 2012, the City was able to report positive balances in all three categories
of net position, both for the City as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type
activities. The following table provides a comparative summary of the City’s net position as of
September 30, 2013 and 2012.

Net Position (in 000's)
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Current and other assets $ 172,893 $ 208,282 $§ 130,344 $ 124,875 $ 303,237 $§ 333,157
Capital assets 513,871 477,227 299,572 300,649 813,443 777,876
Total assets 686,764 685,509 429,916 425,524 1,116,680 1,111,033
Long term liabilities 171,395 182,377 87,193 89,588 258,588 271,965
Other liabilities 27,947 25,083 3,692 2,677 31,639 27,760
Total liabilities 199,342 207,460 90,885 92,265 290,227 299,725
Net position, as restated:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 349,630 301,091 214,179 212,883 563,809 513,974
Restricted 55,641 94,571 6,868 13,994 62,509 108,565
Unrestricted 82,151 82,387 117,984 106,382 200,135 188,769
Total net position $ 487,422 § 478,049 $ 339,031 § 333,259 § 826,453 $ 811,308
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CITY OF ROUND ROCK, TEXAS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Analysis of Changes in Net Position

The following table summarizes the changes in the City’s net position from its activities for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2013 with comparisons to the previous year.

Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
General revenues:
Property taxes
Franchise taxes
Sales tax
Hotel occupancy tax
Public service taxes
Impact fees
Investment earnings
Total revenues
Expenses:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Interest on long-term debt
Water and sewer utility
Golf course
Total expenses

Increases in net position before transfers

Transfers

Increase in net position

Net position - beginning, as restated
Net position - ending

Changes in Net Position (in 000's)

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
$ 11,859 § 12,818 § 43,616 § 43,808 $ 55475 § 56,625
829 1,135 - - 829 1,135
5311 9,782 1,226 2,984 6,537 12,766
34,980 34,379 - - 34,980 34,379
5,953 6,327 - - 5,953 6,327
66,216 63,306 - - 66,216 63,306
4,141 3,253 - - 4,141 3,253
348 316 - - 348 316
- - 5,288 4,549 5,288 4,549
2,026 1,636 1,387 772 3,413 2,408
131,663 132,952 51,517 52,113 183,180 185,065
27,924 30,407 - - 27,924 30,407
41,842 40,945 - - 41,842 40,945
32,575 29,373 - - 32,575 29,373
15,702 15,070 - - 15,702 15,070
7,130 6,958 - - 7,130 6,958
- - 42,720 38,905 42,720 38,905
- - 142 157 142 157
125,173 122,753 42,862 39,062 168,035 161,815
6,490 10,199 8,655 13,051 15,145 23,250
2,883 2,465 (2,883) (2,465) - -
9,373 12,664 5,772 10,586 15,145 23,250
478,049 465,385 333,259 322,673 811,308 788,058
$ 487,422 $ 478,049 $ 339,031 § 333,259 § 826,453 § 811,308
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CITY OF ROUND ROCK, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the City’s net position by $ 9,372,231 or 62
percent of the total growth in the net position of the City over the prior year. Key factors for the increase are as
follows:

e Developer contributions of subdivision improvements approximated $ 2.3 million and are
included in program revenues of public works and culture and recreation activities.

e Amounts received for property taxes increased from last year by 1.8 percent due primarily to
the addition of new property to the tax base; regularly scheduled debt service requirements on bonds and
a reduced reliance on sales tax. Other factors would include continued aggressive collection efforts.

e Sales tax collections of $ 66.2 million increased by 4.6 percent as a result of a modest economic
recovery and continued population growth.

Overall, general revenues, while not shown by program, are used to fund governmental program activities
citywide. Of these, sales taxes are the largest single source of funds comprising 50 percent of total
revenues, while property taxes make up 27 percent of total revenues.

Expenses for governmental activities for the City totaled $§ 125,173,358 for the year ended
September 30, 2013. Significant factors include the following:

e General government costs reflect a continuing multi-year economic development agreement
with Dell Computer Corp. The City and Dell have developed a revenue sharing agreement whereby Dell
and the City share sales tax generated by taxable computer sales within the state. Additional costs of
general government operations include primarily personnel costs and professional services.

e Public safety program costs including police and fire department activities totaled about
$ 41.8 million, or 33.4 percent of total expenses for governmental activities. Most significant are
personnel costs which totaled $ 33.0 million.

e Public works program costs totaling $ 32.6 million reflect primarily depreciation charges on

infrastructure of $ 21.1 million along with the City’s street maintenance and improvement programs and
significant personnel costs.
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CITY OF ROUND ROCK, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City’s net position by $ 5,772,277 or
38 percent of the total growth in the net assets of the City over the prior year. Key factors for the increase
follow.

The City's water and sewer utility continues to show increases in the number of customers and operating
revenues. Scheduled uses of impact fees received have allowed current rates to remain stable while still
providing adequate times coverage of utility bonded debt service. Comparative data for the past two
fiscal years are presented as follows:

2013 2012
Operating revenues $ 43,094,185 $ 43,327,656
Operating income $ 4,066,780 $ 8,705,151
Income available for debt service $ 19,077,878 $ 22,824,386
Annual debt service $ 6,101,113 $ 5,893,953
Coverage 3.13 3.87

The City sets utility rates based on the cost of service. This model establishes an equitable rate structure
for total cost recovery. In order to fund the capital improvement program and to meet increasing system
demand and operational cost pressures, multiple-year rate increases were implemented. Phased-in rate
increases were completed in FY 2010. Even with the prior rate increases, Round Rock water and
wastewater rates continue to be among the lowest in the region.

Growth in the customer base somewhat offset a moderate decrease in consumption levels due to lessened
drought conditions. This resulted in a slight decrease in operating revenues when compared to last year.

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Round Rock uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements.
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CITY OF ROUND ROCK, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Governmental funds. The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-
term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
City’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a
government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $§ 130,410,528. Approximately 29.6 percent of this total amount of $§ 38,604,781
constitutes unassigned fund balance and is available for spending at the City’s discretion. $ 34,586,869
of the fund balance is committed to either construction or special revenue projects/programs. The
remainder of fund balances is restricted or nonspendable to indicate that it is not available for new
spending because it has already been committed to 1) pay debt service of $ 2,415,427, 2) fund authorized
capital projects of $ 43,630,036, 3) other restricted purposes of $ 10,798,328 or 4) nonspendable of
$ 375,087.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the close of the current fiscal year, fund
balance of the general fund reached $ 38,979,868, of which $§ 38,604,781 was unassigned. Unassigned
fund balance represented 46.5 percent of total general fund expenditures.

During the current fiscal year, the fund balance of the general fund increased by $ 1,746,443. The
primary reasons for the increase mirror those highlighted in the analysis of governmental activities in the
government-wide statements.

The debt service fund had a total fund balance of $§ 2,415,427 at the end of the fiscal year, all of which is
restricted for the payment of debt service. The net increase in fund balance during the year was only
$ 114,087. Debt service expenditure requirements decreased by $ 216,329 during the fiscal year and were
adequately funded by the debt service portion of the property tax.

The fund balance of the RRTEDC revenue fund was $ 30,295,403, a decrease of $ 17,781,328 compared
to the prior year. The decrease reflects continued transfers to fund transportation system improvements
and related maintenance and debt service costs.

The RRTEDC project fund, the self-financed construction fund and the 2007 general obligation bond
fund had a combined total fund balance at year-end of $ 39,758,887. The collective net decrease of
$ 13,087,407 is a result of contributions and transfers in for scheduled project construction activity and
major progress in related project expenditures.
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Proprietary funds. The City’s proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information found
in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net position of the water and sewer utility totaled $ 115,894,429 at September 30, 2013. The
total growth in net assets for the utility was $ 5,760,729. The unrestricted net position represented 34.9
percent of the utility’s total net position. Factors concerning the finances of the proprietary funds have
already been addressed in the discussion of the government-wide financial statements and business-type
activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights
Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget for the general fund were an
increase in available cash of $ 9.0 million or 10.2 percent. The amendments were primarily to fund

specified capital purchases totaling $ 9.0 million.

Funding sources for the above items were provided by various revenue budget amendments netting a total
of § 4.5 million along with various operational savings and delays implementing budgeted programs.

Overall, actual revenues and financing sources exceeded budgetary estimates and expenditures including
transfers were less than budgeted amounts, thus eliminating any need to draw upon existing fund balance.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

The City of Round Rock’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as
of September 30, 2013, amounted to $ 813,442,372 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment
includes land, buildings and improvements, improvements other than buildings (including infrastructure),
machinery and equipment and construction in progress.

Major capital asset events during the year ended September 30, 2013, included the following:

e Construction continued on the new Brushy Creek Trail Gap project at a total estimated project
cost of $ 2.8 million. Completion is expected in mid-2014.

o The Centennial Plaza was completed in 2013 at a cost of $1.1 million and the McConico
Building remodel project was underway with costs estimated at $1.1 million.

e Major parks and recreation projects continued including a renovation of the Rabb House and a
bathing beach along Brushy Creek. Estimated project costs are $ 3.7 million.

e Two major projects within the neighborhood revitalization program were completed at a cost of
$ 1.5 million utilizing both City funds and Community Development Block Grant funds.

e The Sports Complex was nearing completion at a total cost of § 22 million. Opening is
scheduled for early 2014 and outdoor court construction completion is expected in mid-2014. Funding
sources were revenue bonds and self-financed construction funds.
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration (Continued)

e Major arterial and road projects are underway and are in various stages of completion.
Completed projects totaled $ 37 million while construction in progress at year-end approximated
$10.4 million.

e Various street, sidewalk and drainage improvement projects were underway with completions
totaling $ 11.6 million and construction in progress at $ 3.2 million at year-end.

e Developers contributed infrastructure improvements for governmental activities of
$ 2.3 million and $ 1.2 million for water and sewer system infrastructure improvements.

e The program to replace water meters citywide with automated reading equipment is underway
with Phase 5 placed in service at a cost of $ 1.8 million.

e Various water and wastewater line replacement projects were completed and placed in service
at a cost of § 1.1 million.

e Work is almost complete on the regional west wastewater treatment plant rehabilitation and
improvement project. The remaining phases of the project will be completed by early 2014 at a total
estimated cost of § 4.7 million.

¢ Construction is underway on Phases 2 and 4 of the reuse treatment facility and water line at a
total cost of $§ 6.2 million with construction in progress of $ 2.2 million at year end.

e The sanitary sewer evaluation and rehabilitation program continues with completed projects
placed in service at $ 1.7 million by year end.

e Land acquisition and engineering is completed on Round Rock’s regional water line. Total cost

is estimated at $ 8.4 million and $ 1.9 million had been incurred by year end. Completion is scheduled
for late 2014.
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SEPTEMBER 30, 2013
Capital Assets (in 000's)
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Land $ 39,139 § 34,143 § 8449 $§ 8,449 § 47,588 § 42,592
Buildings and Improvements 113,810 110,261 22,506 22,506 136,316 132,767

Improvements Other Than Buildings 615,897 557,730 374,259 369,671 990,156 927,401

Machinery and Equipment 57,463 58,467 12,039 10,593 69,502 69,060
Accumulated Depreciation (344,584)  (321,211)  (128,189)  (115,243) (472,773) (436,454)
Construction in Progress 32,146 37,837 10,508 4,673 42,654 42,510
Total $ 513,871 § 477,227 § 299,572 § 300,640 $ 813,443 § 777,876

Additional information on the City of Round Rock’s capital assets can be found in Note IV(E) to the
financial statements.

Long-Term Debt

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Round Rock had total debt outstanding of $§ 241,667,402.
Of this amount, § 108,110,000 comprises debt backed by the full faith and credit of the City. The
remainder of the City’s debt is secured solely by specified revenue sources (i.e., revenue bonds and bank
loans).

During the current fiscal year, the City of Round Rock’s total debt decreased by $ 13,351,346. The net
decrease is largely due to the regularly scheduled debt principal along with the refinancing of various
existing debt issues to take advantage of favorable interest rates. Details of the refunding issue can be
found in Note IV(F)(4) to the financial statements.
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Long-Term Debt (in 000's)

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

General obligation bonds $ 96,340 $101,185 $ - 3 - $ 96,340 $101,185
Certificates of obligation 11,770 12,380 - - 11,770 12,380
Hotel tax revenue bonds 14,345 14,765 - - 14,345 14,765
Sales tax revenue bonds 19,580 23,375 - - 19,580 23,375
State infrastructure bank loans 16,007 17,384 - - 16,007 17,384
Water and wastewater

revenue bonds - - 83,625 85,930 83,625 85,930
Total $158,042 $169,089 $ 83,625 $ 85930 $241,667 $255,019

The City of Round Rock benefits substantially in reduced interest costs resulting from recently affirmed
bond ratings by Moody’s Investors Service of Aal, and Standard & Poor’s of AA+.

There is no direct debt limitation in the City Charter or under state law. The City operates under a Home
Rule Charter (Article XI, Section 5, Texas Constitution), approved by the voters, that limits the maximum
tax rate, for all City purposes to $ 2.50 per $100 assessed valuation. Administratively, the Attorney
General of the State of Texas will permit allocation of § 1.50 of the $ 2.50 maximum tax rate for general
obligation debt service. Assuming the maximum tax rate for debt service of $ 1.50 on the January 1,
2012 certified assessed valuation of $ 8,291,050,337 at 100% collection, tax revenue of $ 124,365,755
would be produced. This revenue could service the debt on $ 1,486,218,341 issued as 20-year serial
bonds at 5.5% (with level debt service payment). The resulting legal debt margin is $ 1,384,393,768.

The City had authorized but unissued water and wastewater system revenue bonds totaling $ 1,585,000 at
September 30, 2013. Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in Note IV(F) to
the financial statements

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

The development of the City’s budget is guided by several factors including the City’s strategic plan,
prevailing economic conditions and by the continuing need to provide basic and improved customer
services for a growing population. The fiscal year 2013-2014 budget plan adopted by the City Council
adheres to the City’s financial policies and preserves the City’s strong financial position while providing
excellent levels of service. Priorities addressed in this budget are to provide adequate funding to maintain
current service levels, increase investment in the City’s street maintenance program and address
employee compensation plans.
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The development of the budget is guided by the City’s strategic goals, prevailing economic conditions
and the continuing need to provide basic services for a growing population. For next fiscal year, the
budget is influenced by several factors including improved economic conditions and continued population
growth. Our primary revenue source, sales tax, has continued to see a stabilization trend. In order to
provide adequate core operating services under current economic conditions, a conservative budget
strategy was utilized.

Major programs in the general fund continue to focus on transportation and public safety programs. The
adopted budgeted includes significant funding in the City’s pavement management program. The budget
also includes a continued focus on public safety, community development and parks to ensure the high
quality of life enjoyed by Round Rock citizens and visitors.

Revenue assumptions in general for fiscal year 2013-2014 are expected to follow the growth curve of job
creation, population growth, retail sales activity and housing starts. Other revenues, such as property tax
revenue and sales tax revenue, are forecast using historical results or specific calculations.

As discussed earlier, the City sets utility rates based on the cost of service. This model establishes an
equitable rate structure for total cost recovery. In order to fund the capital improvement program and to
meet increasing system demand and operational cost pressures, multiple-year utility rate increases were
implemented. A phased-in rate increase was completed in fiscal year 2010 and no rate increases for retail
water or wastewater services are planned for the 2013-2014 budget year.

A water conservation and drought contingency program has been established to conserve existing water
sources. A block rate program was designed to encourage water conservation during the summer months.
Over this next budget year, Round Rock will continue to expand the water conservation program,
focusing on education and awareness. Conservation rates will continue to be utilized to encourage
conservation.

Additionally, Round Rock in partnership with the cities of Leander and Cedar Park have created the
Brushy Creek Regional Utility Authority (BCRUA) to facilitate construction and operation of a regional
water facility that will provide treated water from Lake Travis to the cities. The first phase of this project
was substantially completed in July 2012. Future financial requirements of this project are incorporated
in the City’s utility rate planning model.

The City’s water and sewer utility expenditures are largely driven by the needs of a growing industrial
and residential customer base as well as aging utility plants and lines. Increased expenditures are
necessitated by the increases in water and water supply reserve costs. Additionally, cost increases are
expected in pumping costs, materials and supplies.

Like the water system mentioned above, the wastewater system costs are reflective of expansions required
to meet the needs of a larger, growing population. The facilities accommodate a regional treatment
approach, which currently includes the cities of Round Rock, Austin, Leander and Cedar Park. The Fern
Bluff and Brushy Creek Municipal Utility Districts are also customers of this regional system. The City
is closely monitoring operating costs and their impacts on current and future utility rates.

-33-



CITY OF ROUND ROCK, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Maintaining and rehabilitating the City’s wastewater lines in compliance with Texas Commission on
Environmental Quality (TCEQ) Edwards Aquifer Regulations continues to be the responsibility of the
City. This budget includes costs anticipated to meet these standards.

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors
with a general overview of the City’s finances and to show the City’s accountability for the money it

receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the
Director of Finance, City of Round Rock, 221 East Main Street, Round Rock, Texas 78664.

-34 -



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

-35-



CITY OF ROUND ROCK, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 36,972,428 $ 21,700,493 $ 58,672,921
Investments 68,986,496 75,884,044 144,870,540
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles)-

Property taxes, including

interest and penalties 355,674 - 355,674

Accounts & other 5,396,794 5,923,538 11,320,332

Loans 1,970,130 - 1,970,130

Accrued interest 284,914 228,474 513,388

Internal balances (1,123,500) 1,123,500 -

Assessments - - -

Intergovernmental 178,489 4,784,994 4,963,483
Inventories 291,134 373,430 664,564
Other current assets 231,565 1,510,190 1,741,755
Restricted assets -

Cash and cash equivalents 36,730,352 7,555,831 44,286,183

Investments 13,757,720 - 13,757,720

Property taxes receivable 227,184 - 227,184

Accounts and other 1,288,647 357,607 1,646,254

Accrued interest 27,034 - 27,034
Investment in joint venture - 10,902,466 10,902,466
Deferred charges, net 7,317,716 - 7,317,716
Capital assets -

Land and construction in progress 71,285,179 18,957,365 90,242,544

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 442,585,612 280,614,216 723,199,828

Total assets 686,763,568 429,916,148 1,116,679,716

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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Accounts payable
Accrued payroll

Unearned revenue

LIABILITIES

Accrued interest payable

Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

NET POSITION

Temporarily restricted for:

Debt service

Capital projects

Hotel-motel tax

Public safety

Unrestricted

Total net position

Governmental

Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
22,668,367 $ 2,676,003 §$ 25,344,370
3,395,688 404,614 3,800,302
680,646 - 680,646
1,202,694 611,027 1,813,721
18,067,995 3,042,223 21,110,218
153,326,509 84,150,882 237,477,391
199,341,899 90,884,749 290,226,648
349,629,681 214,178,908 563,808,589
1,212,733 245,895 1,458,628
43,630,036 6,622,167 50,252,203
9,549,082 - 9,549,082
1,249,246 - 1,249,246
82,150,891 117,984,429 200,135,320
487,421,669 $ 339,031,399 $ 826,453,068
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CITY OF ROUND ROCK, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Governmental activities:
General government $ 27,923,780 $ 2,822,715  $ 725,326 $ 1,232,051
Public safety 41,842,363 3,248,867 100,042 50,547
Public works 32,574,926 2,942,382 - 2,563,327
Culture and recreation 15,702,435 2,844,842 3,999 1,464,616
Interest on long-term debt 7,129,854 - - -
Total governmental activities 125,173,358 11,858,806 829,367 5,310,541
Business-type activities:
Water and sewer utility 42,720,322 43,094,185 - 1,225,991
Golf course 141,153 522,169 - -
Total business-type activities 42,861,475 43,616,354 - 1,225,991
Total primary government $ 168,034,833 $ 55,475,160 $ 829,367 $ 6,536,532

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Governmental Business-Type
Functions/Programs Activities Activities Total
Governmental activities:
General government $ (23,143,6838) $ - $ (23,143,688)
Public safety (38,442,907) - (38,442,907)
Public works (27,069,217) - (27,069,217)
Culture and recreation (11,388,978) - (11,388,978)
Interest on long-term debt (7,129,854) - (7,129,854)
Total governmental activities (107,174,644) - (107,174,644)
Business-type activities:
Water and sewer utility - 1,599,854 1,599,854
Golf course - 381,016 381,016
Total business-type activities - 1,980,870 1,980,870
Total primary government (107,174,644) 1,980,870 (105,193,774)
General revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes, levied for general purpose 23,548,737 - 23,548,737
Property taxes, levied for debt service 11,430,841 - 11,430,841
Franchise taxes 5,952,712 - 5,952,712
Sales tax 66,216,447 - 66,216,447
Hotel occupancy tax 4,140,920 - 4,140,920
Public service taxes 347,846 - 347,846
Impact fees - 5,288,378 5,288,378
Unrestricted investment earnings 2,026,554 1,385,847 3,412,401
Transfers 2,882,818 (2,882,818) -
Total general revenues and transfers 116,546,875 3,791,407 120,338,282
Change in net position 9,372,231 5,772,277 15,144,508
Net position-beginning, as restated 478,049,438 333,259,122 811,308,560
Net position-ending $ 487421669 $ 339,031,399 § 826,453,068
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CITY OF ROUND ROCK, TEXAS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013
Round Rock
Transportation
and Economic
Debt Development
General Service Corporation
ASSETS Fund Fund Revenue Fund
Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,174,733  §$ - S -
Investments 64,972,120 - -
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles) -
Property taxes, including interest and penalties 355,674 - -
Accounts and other 4,871,283 - -
Loans - - -
Accrued interest 162,485 - -
Interfund 291,221 29,559 -
Intergovernmental 108,447 - -
Inventories 291,134 - -
Other current assets 83,953 - -
Restricted assets -
Cash and cash equivalents - 2,407,411 18,810,332
Investments - - 13,757,720
Receivables -
Property taxes, including interest and penalties - 227,184 -
Sales tax - - 1,288,647
Accrued interest - - 27,034
Total assets $ 81,311,050 $ 2,664,154 § 33,883,733
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities-
Accounts payable $ 9,781,262 $ - 3 1,856,330
Accrued payroll 3,322,887 - -
Interfund payables 28,869,301 37,421 1,732,000
Deferred revenue 357,732 211,306 -
Total liabilities 42,331,182 248,727 3,588,330
Fund balances -
Nonspendable 375,087 - -
Restricted - debt service - 2,415,427 -
Restricted - authorized construction - - 30,295,403
Restricted - hotel-motel tax - - -
Restricted - public safety - - -
Committed, reported in-
Special revenue funds - - -
Capital projects funds - - -
Unassigned 38,604,781 - -
Total fund balances 38,979,868 2,415,427 30,295,403
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 81,311,050 § 2,664,154 $ 33,883,733

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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Round Rock

Transportation
and Economic 2007
Development Self- General Other Total
Corporation Financed Obligation Governmental Governmental
Project Fund Construction Bonds Fund Funds Funds
$ 2,529,685 § 4243974 $ - 3 13,136,672 § 30,085,064
- - - 2,007,188 66,979,308
- - - - 355,674
- - - 525,511 5,396,794
658,000 1,312,130 - - 1,970,130
- 107,265 - 7,582 271,332
1,500,000 28,292,537 - 88,094 30,201,411
- 42,976 - 27,066 178,489
- - - - 291,134
- 60,112 - - 144,065
- - 9,762,126 5,750,483 36,730,352
- - - - 13,757,720
- - - - 227,184
- - - - 1,288,647
- - - - 27,034

$ 4,687,685 § 34,058,994 § 9,762,126  § 21,542,596  § 187,910,338

$ 4,667,860 $ 3,452,041 $ 608,217 $ 1,833,807 $ 22,199,517
- - - 72,801 3,395,688

- 21,800 - 29,179 30,689,701

g - - 645,866 1,214,904
4,667,860 3,473,841 608,217 2,581,653 57,499,810
- - - - 375,087

- - - - 2,415,427

19,825 - 9,153,909 4,160,899 43,630,036

- - - 9,549,082 9,549,082

- - - 1,249,246 1,249,246

- - - 2,730,535 2,730,535

- 30,585,153 - 1,271,181 31,856,334

- - ; - 38,604,781

19,825 30,585,153 9,153,909 18,960,943 130,410,528

$ 4,687,685 § 34,058,994 § 9,762,126  § 21,542,596  $ 187,910,338
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CITY OF ROUND ROCK, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 130,410,528

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Position
are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds. These assets consist of:

Land $ 39,138,764

Construction in progress 32,146,415

Building and improvements 729,706,705

Equipment 57,462,559

Accumulated depreciation (344,583,652)

Total capital assets $ 513,870,791 513,870,791

Some revenues in the governmental funds are deferred because they are not collected
within the prescribed time period after year end. On the accrual basis, however, those
revenues would be recognized, regardless of when they are collected.

Current and prior year property
taxes not collected 534,258

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of self-funded insurance
to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in
governmental activities in the statement of net position. 7,885,574

Some long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds. They are detailed in Note III A. (165,279,482)

Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 487,421,669

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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Revenues -

CITY OF ROUND ROCK, TEXAS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Taxes and franchise,

including interest and penalties
Licenses, permits and fees
Charges for services

Fines

and forfeitures

Intergovernmental
Hotel occupancy tax
Investment and other
Contributions

Total revenues

Expenditures -
Current -
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation

Debt

service -

Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges
Issuance costs

Capital projects

Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses) -
Issuance of revenue bonds
Issuance of lease
Issuance of refunding bonds
Payment to refunding agent
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, October 1, 2012, as restated
Fund balances, September 30, 2013

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.

Round Rock
Transportation
and Economic
Debt Development
General Service Corporation
Fund Fund Revenue Fund
79,456,403 11,407,097 § 16,554,112
1,198,104 - -
4,436,779 - -
2,702,635 - -
374,881 - -
2,320,893 9,835 469,612
90,489,695 11,416,932 17,023,724
23,213,047 - -
39,166,453 - -
9,157,586 - 1,273,930
11,405,902 - -
- 12,852,059 -
- 6,797,281 -
- 98,630 -
82,942,988 19,747,970 1,273,930
7,546,707 (8,331,038) 15,749,794
445,980 - -
- 8,615,000 -
- (8,509,756) -
2,832,850 8,339,881 -
(9,079,094) - (33,531,122)
(5,800,264) 8,445,125 (33,531,122)
1,746,443 114,087 (17,781,328)
37,233,425 2,301,340 48,076,731
38,979,868 2415427  § 30,295,403

_44 -



Round Rock

Transportation
and Economic 2007
Development Self- General Other Total
Corporation Financed Obligation Governmental Governmental
Project Fund Construction Bonds Fund Funds Funds
$ - 8 - - - 8 107,417,612
- - - 2,369,333 3,567,437
- - - - 4,436,779
- - - 506,002 3,208,637
- 399,827 - 450,487 1,225,195
- - - 4,140,920 4,140,920
41,134 74,136 14,117 636,115 3,565,842
2,461,483 10,860 - 94,984 2,567,327
2,502,617 484,823 14,117 8,197,841 130,129,749
- - - 570,688 23,783,735
- - - 309,338 39,475,791
- - - 1,420,927 11,852,443
- - - 1,035,046 12,440,948
- - - - 12,852,059
- - - - 6,797,281
- - - - 98,630
33,794,469 13,754,215 5,869,017 12,106,074 65,523,775
33,794,469 13,754,215 5,869,017 15,442,073 172,824,662
(31,291,852) (13,269,392) (5,854,900) (7,244,232) (42,694,913)
- 554,020 - - 1,000,000
- - - - 8,615,000
- - - - (8,509,756)
27,761,861 9,055,000 - 1,558,130 49,547,722
- (42,144) - (3,710,903) (46,363,263)
27,761,861 9,566,876 - (2,152,773) 4,289,703
(3,529,991) (3,702,516) (5,854,900) (9,397,005) (38,405,210)
3,549,816 34,287,669 15,008,809 28,357,948 168,815,738
$ 19,825 § 30,585,153 9,153,909 18,960,943  $ 130,410,528
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CITY OF ROUND ROCK, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
Net Change in Fund Balances-Total Governmental Funds $ (38,405,210)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in
the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the
amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation. 35,780,941

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital .
assets (i.e. sales, disposals, and donations) is to increase net position. 862,327

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. 127,570

The issuance of long-term debt (i.e. bonds, leases) provides current
financial resources to the governmental funds, while the repayment of
the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources
of governmental funds. Also, governmental funds report the effect of
issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt
is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the
statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences
in the treatment of long-term debt and related items. 11,796,314

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds. (1,196,036)

Internal service funds are used to charge the costs of self-funded insurance
to the individual funds. The net revenue of certain activities of the
internal service fund is reported with governmental activities. 454,925

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 9,420,831

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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CITY OF ROUND ROCK, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Variance -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Actual Original Final (Negative)
Revenues -
Taxes and franchise,
including interest and penalties $ 79,456,403 $ 74,168,000 $ 78,668,000 $ 788,403
Licenses, permits and fees 1,198,104 808,100 808,100 390,004
Charges for services 4,436,779 3,978,600 3,978,600 458,179
Fines and forfeitures 2,702,635 2,688,000 2,688,000 14,635
Intergovernmental 374,881 314,636 332,136 42,745
Investment and other 2,320,893 2,548,550 2,482,550 (161,657)
Total revenues 90,489,695 84,505,886 88,957,386 1,532,309
Expenditures -
Current -
General government 23,213,047 24,438,219 23,378,219 165,172
Public safety 39,166,453 40,003,909 39,192,909 26,456
Public works 9,157,586 11,592,131 9,185,631 28,045
Culture and recreation 11,405,902 11,682,069 11,420,069 14,167
Total expenditures 82,942,988 87,716,328 83,176,828 233,840
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 7,546,707 (3,210,442) 5,780,558 1,766,149
Other financing sources (uses) -
Issuance of lease 445,980 400,000 400,000 (45,980)
Transfers in 2,832,850 2,811,050 2,832,850 -
Transfers out (9,079,094) - (8,991,000) (88,094)
Total other financing sources (uses) (5,800,264) 3,211,050 (5,758,150) (42,114)
Net change in fund balances 1,746,443 $ 608 $ 22,408 $ 1,724,035
Fund balance, October 1, 2012, as restated 37,233,425
Fund balance, September 30, 2013 $ 38,979,868

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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CITY OF ROUND ROCK, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ROUND ROCK TRANSPORTATION AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Revenues -
Sales tax
Investment and other
Total revenues
Expenditures -
Current -
Public works

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues
over expenditures

Other financing uses-
Transfers out

Total other financing uses

Net change in fund balances

Fund balance, October 1, 2012, as restated

REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013
Variance -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Actual Original Final (Negative)
$ 16,554,112 $§ 15,000,000 $ 16,100,000 $ 454,112
469,612 471,200 471,200 (1,588)
17,023,724 15,471,200 16,571,200 452,524
1,273,930 1,401,800 1,597,550 323,620
1,273,930 1,401,800 1,597,550 323,620
15,749,794 14,069,400 14,973,650 776,144
(33,531,122) (6,580,122) (32,031,122) (1,500,000)
(33,531,122) (6,580,122) (32,031,122) (1,500,000)
(17,781,328) $ 7,489,278 $ (17,057,472) § (723,856)
48,076,731
$ 30,295,403

Fund balance, September 30, 2013

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Receivables (net of allowance for
uncollectibles of $ 1,529,210) -
Accounts
Accrued interest
Interfund
Intergovernmental

Inventories

Other current assets
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash, cash equivalents,
and investments:
Impact fees
Construction
Customer deposits
Revenue bond covenant accounts
Restricted accounts and accrued
interest receivable:
Impact fees
Loans receivable
Investment in joint venture
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress
Capital assets being depreciated,
(net of accumulated depreciation
of $ 128,189,148)

CITY OF ROUND ROCK, TEXAS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Total capital assets (net of accumulated

depreciation)
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Business-Type Activities Governmental

Enterprise Funds Activities

Water and Golf Course Internal
Sewer Fund Fund Total Service

$ 20,834,573 § 865,920 21,700,493 $ 6,887,364
75,884,044 - 75,884,044 2,007,188
5,919,278 4,260 5,923,538 -
228,474 - 228,474 7,582
2,920 - 2,920 584,610
4,784,994 - 4,784,994 -
373,430 - 373,430 -
1,510,190 - 1,510,190 87,500
109,537,903 870,180 110,408,083 9,574,244
2,017,733 - 2,017,733 -
4,246,827 - 4,246,827 -
1,045,376 - 1,045,376 -
245,895 - 245,895 -
42,306 - 42,306 -
315,301 - 315,301 -
10,902,466 - 10,902,466 -
17,066,190 1,891,175 18,957,365 -
277,551,342 3,062,874 280,614,216 -
294,617,532 4,954,049 299,571,581 -
313,433,436 4,954,049 318,387,485 -
$ 422971339 § 5,824,229 428,795,568 $ 9,574,244

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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CITY OF ROUND ROCK, TEXAS

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Accrued interest
Interfund payable
Current portion of bonds payable
Current portion of premiums on bonds
Accrued benefit obligations

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds payable
Premiums on bonds payable
Accrued benefit obligations
Customer deposits
Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Net position:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt
Restricted for:
Debt service
Capital projects
Unrestricted

Total net position

Reconciliation to government-wide statement of net position:

Adjustment to reflect the cumulative net profit of the internal

service fund that was allocated to enterprise fund functions.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Business-Type Activities Governmental

Enterprise Funds Activities

Water and Golf Course Internal
Sewer Fund Fund Total Service
$ 2,676,003 § - 2,676,003 $ 468,850
404,614 - 404,614 -
611,027 - 611,027 -
99,240 - 99,240 -
2,600,000 - 2,600,000 -
68,006 - 68,006 -
374,217 - 374,217 -
6,833,107 - 6,833,107 468,850
81,025,000 - 81,025,000 -
1,699,667 - 1,699,667 -
335,945 - 335,945 -
1,090,270 - 1,090,270 -
84,150,882 - 84,150,882 -
90,983,989 - 90,983,989 468,850
209,224,859 4,954,049 214,178,908 -
245,895 - 245,895 -
6,622,167 - 6,622,167 -
115,894,429 870,180 116,764,609 9,105,394
$ 331,987,350 § 5,824,229 337,811,579 $ 9,105,394
1,219,820
339,031,399

Net position of business-type activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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CITY OF ROUND ROCK, TEXAS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Business-Type Activities- Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities
Water and Golf Course Internal
Sewer Fund Fund Total Service
Operating revenues -
Charges for services $ 43,094,185 $ 522,169 43,616,354 8,409,909
Total operating revenues 43,094,185 522,169 43,616,354 8,409,909
Operating expenses -
Personnel services 7,602,658 - 7,602,658 -
Contractual services 14,116,021 - 14,116,021 1,349,161
Supplies 872,363 - 872,363 -
Materials 859,109 - 859,109 -
Heat, light and power 1,951,428 - 1,951,428 -
Claims expense - - - 6,235,153
Depreciation 13,625,826 141,153 13,766,979 -
Total operating expenses 39,027,405 141,153 39,168,558 7,584,314
Operating income 4,066,780 381,016 4,447,796 825,595
Nonoperating revenues (expenses) -
Investment and other revenues 1,385,272 575 1,385,847 10,687
Interest and fiscal charges (3,772,633) - (3,772,633) -
Total nonoperating
revenues (expenses) (2,387,361) 575 (2,386,786) 10,687
Income before contributions
and transfers 1,679,419 381,591 2,061,010 836,282
Contributions and transfers -
Contributions - impact fees 5,288,378 - 5,288,378 -
Developer contributions - infrastructure 1,225,991 - 1,225,991 -
Transfers in 38,641 - 38,641 -
Transfers out (2,471,700) (449,759) (2,921,459) (301,641)
Total contributions and transfers 4,081,310 (449,759) 3,631,551 (301,641)
Change in net position 5,760,729 (68,168) 5,692,561 534,641
Net position, October 1, 2012 326,226,621 5,892,397 8,570,753
Net position, September 30, 2013 $ 331,987,350 § 5,824,229 9,105,394
Reconciliation to government-wide statement of activities:
Adjustment to reflect the net profit of the internal
service fund that was allocated to enterprise fund functions. 79,716
Change in net position of business-type activities 5,772,277

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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CITY OF ROUND ROCK, TEXAS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from customers

Cash received from other funds for
services provided

Cash payments to suppliers for goods
and services

Cash payments to employees for services

Cash payments to other funds for services

Net cash provided (used) by
operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfer from other funds
Transfers to other funds
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities:
Receipts of capital contributions
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Investment in joint venture
Principal paid on revenue bonds
Collection of loans
Interest and fiscal charges paid

Net cash used by capital and
related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of investments
Proceeds from sale of investments
Investment and other income
Net cash provided (used) by
investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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Business Type Activities- Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities
Water and Golf Internal
Sewer Fund Course Total Service
43,642,879 $§ 522229 $§ 44,165,108 640,760
12,664 - 12,664 7,426,327
(16,587,077) - (16,587,077) (7,666,948)
(7,458,109) - (7,458,109) -
(1,157,613) - (1,157,613) -
18,452,744 522,229 18,974,973 400,139
38,641 - 38,641 -
(2,471,700) (449,759) (2,921,459) (301,641)
(2,433,059) (449,759) (2,882,818) (301,641)
5,526,158 - 5,526,158 -
(10,526,956) - (10,526,956) -
5,109 - 5,109 -
344,275 - 344,275 -
(2,305,000) - (2,305,000) -
412,784 - 412,784 -
(3,796,713) - (3,796,713) -
(10,340,343) - (10,340,343) -
(44,380,662) - (44,380,662) (505,313)
28,980,293 - 28,980,293 -
1,852,577 1,013 1,853,590 10,686
(13,547,792) 1,013 (13,546,779) (494,627)
(7,868,450) 73,483 (7,794,967) (396,129)
36,258,854 792,437 37,051,291 7,283,493
28,390,404 $ 865920 § 29,256,324 § 6,887,364
(Continued)



CITY OF ROUND ROCK, TEXAS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Business-Type Activities Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities
Water and Golf Internal
Sewer Fund Course Total Service
Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents

to Proprietary Fund Statement of Net Position
Cash and cash equivalents $ 20,834,573 $ 865920 $ 21,700,493 $ 6,887,364
Restricted assets -

Cash and cash equivalents 7,555,831 - 7,555,831 -
Cash and cash equivalents $ 28390,404 $ 865920 $ 29,256,324 $§ 6,887,364
Reconciliation of operating income to

net cash provided by operating activities
Operating income $ 4,066,780 $§ 381,016 $ 4,447,796 $ 825,595
Adjustments to reconcile operating income

to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 13,625,826 141,153 13,766,979 -
Provision for bad debts 43,043 - 43,043 -
Decrease in receivables 566,701 60 566,761 (5,212)
Increase in interfund receivables 3,424 - 3,424 (337,610)
Increase in inventory (23,287) - (23,287) -
Decrease in other assets (64,658) - (64,658) -
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 99,133 - 99,133 (82,634)
Increase in accrued payroll 38,598 - 38,598 -
Increase in interfund payables 9,240 - 9,240 -
Decrease in payables from restricted assets (18,007) - (18,007) -
Increase in accrued benefit obligation 105,951 - 105,951 -
Total adjustments 14,385,964 141,213 14,527,177 (425,456)
Net cash provided (used) by operations $ 18,452,744 § 522229 $§ 18974973 $§ 400,139

NOTES:

(1) Noncash capital and related financing activities:
In fiscal year 2013, the Water and Sewer Fund had $ 1,225,991 in capital
assets contributed, recognized $ 347,920 in unrealized investment losses,
and loss on joint venture of $ 4,569,316.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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CITY OF ROUND ROCK, TEXAS

FIDUCIARY FUND
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013
AGENCY FUND
Public
Improvement Districts
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 10208
Total assets $ 10,208
LIABILITIES

Liabilities -

Due to participants $ 10,208

Total liabilities $ 10,208

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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CITY OF ROUND ROCK, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Round Rock, Texas is a municipal corporation incorporated under 4rticle XI, Section 5 of the
Constitution of the State of Texas (Home Rule Amendment). The City operates under a Council-Manager
form of government. The financial statements of the City have been prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-setting body for governmental accounting and
financial reporting. The GASB periodically updates its codification of the existing Governmental
Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards which, along with subsequent GASB pronouncements
(Statements and Interpretations), constitutes GAAP for governmental units. The more significant of these
accounting policies are described below and, where appropriate, subsequent pronouncements will be
referenced.

A. REPORTING ENTITY

The City provides various services and performs many different functions. These include a police force, a
fire fighting and protection force, emergency medical services, a park and recreation system, a municipal
golf course, a public library, convention and tourism support, planning and zoning, a waterworks and
sewer utility system. The City’s staff provides the necessary support for the services provided. All are
responsible to the Citizens of Round Rock and are therefore included within the reporting entity.

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the City and
its component unit, an entity for which the City is considered to be financially accountable. Blended
component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the City’s operations and so
data from these units are combined with data of the City.

Blended component unit

The Round Rock Transportation and Economic Development Corporation, an entity legally separate from
the City, is governed by a seven-member board appointed by the City Council. The City Council
maintains budgetary control of the Corporation. For financial reporting purposes the Round Rock
Transportation and Economic Development Corporation is presented as a part of the City’s operations
because its sole purpose is to utilize sales tax revenues for the improvement of the City’s transportation
system. The revenues of the corporation and its administrative expenditures are accounted for in a special
revenue fund, while the capital improvements are accounted for in a capital projects fund.

B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION-GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements include both government-wide (based on the City as a whole) and fund
financial statements. GASB Statement No. 34 requires certain supplementary information. Management’s
Discussion and Analysis includes an analytical overview of the City’s financial activities. In addition,
budgetary comparison statements are presented that compare the adopted and amended budgets of the
General Fund and the Round Rock Transportation and Economic Development Corporation Special
Revenue Fund with their actual results.
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CITY OF ROUND ROCK, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION-GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Government-wide Statements:

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component
unit. Governmental activities, which are normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues,
are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and
charges for support.

The City’s statement of net position includes both non-current assets and non-current liabilities of the
City. In addition, the government-wide statement of activities reflects depreciation expense on the City’s
capital assets, including infrastructure.

The government-wide statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a
functional category (police, fire, public works, etc.) are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are
those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided
by a given function or segment, 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational
requirements of a particular function or segment and 3) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly
included among program revenues are reported as general revenues.

The net cost (by function or business-type activity) is normally covered by general revenue (property,
sales or franchise taxes, intergovernmental revenues, interest income, etc.).

The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the City as an entity and the change in
aggregate financial position resulting from financial activities of the fiscal period. The focus of the fund
financial statements is on the major individual funds of the governmental and business-type categories, as
well as the fiduciary funds, and the component unit. Each presentation provides valuable information that
can be analyzed and compared to enhance the usefulness of the information.
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CITY OF ROUND ROCK, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION-GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fund Financial Statements:

Separate fund based financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.
Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements. An empbhasis is placed on major funds within the governmental
and proprietary categories. GASB Statement No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of assets,
liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of either fund category for the governmental and enterprise
combined) for the determination of major funds. The major governmental funds are the general fund, the
debt service fund, the Round Rock Transportation and Economic Development Corporation’s special
revenue and capital project funds, the self-financed construction fund and the 2007 General Obligation
Bond capital projects fund. The nonmajor funds are combined in a separate column in the fund financial
statements.

The internal service fund, which provides services to the other funds of the government, is presented as
part of the proprietary fund financial statements. Because the principal users are the City’s governmental
activities, financial statements of the internal service fund are consolidated into the governmental column
when presented at the government-wide level. The costs of these services are reflected in the appropriate
functional activity (general government, public safety, public works, etc.).

The City’s fiduciary fund is presented in the fund financial statements by type. Since by definition these
assets are being held for the benefit of a third party and cannot be used to address activities or obligations
of the government, this fund is not incorporated into the government-wide statements.

C. GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of the City are financed. The
acquisition, use and balances of the City's expendable financial resources and the related current liabilities
(except those, if any, which should be accounted for in proprietary funds) are accounted for through
governmental funds. The measurement focus is upon determination of financial position and changes in
financial position, rather than upon net income determination. The City maintains the following
governmental fund types:

General Fund - The General Fund accounts for financial resources in use for general types of

operations, which are not encompassed within other funds. The general fund is considered a major fund
in the fund financial statements.
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CITY OF ROUND ROCK, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES (CONTINUED)

Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue sources (other than major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified

purposes.

There are twelve groups of funds within the Special Revenue Funds which account for the activities
related to grant programs, hotel-motel room taxes, transportation system improvement sales tax and funds
designated for specific service programs. They are as follows:

— Hotel-Motel Occupancy Tax Fund

— Hotel-Motel Occupancy Venue Tax Fund
— Drainage Fund

— Police Fund

— Municipal Court Fund

— Landscape Fund

— Round Rock Transportation and Economic Development Corporation Revenue Fund
— Community Development Block Grant Fund
— Annexation Fees Fund

— Library Fund

— Public Education & Government Fund

— Traffic Safety Program Fund

The Round Rock Transportation and Economic Development Corporation special revenue fund is
considered a major fund in the fund financial statements. It accounts for sales tax monies received for
streets, drainage and other transportation system improvements, including maintenance costs associated
with such authorized projects.

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for,
and the payment of, governmental long-term debt principal, interest and related costs. The debt service
fund is considered a major fund in the fund financial statements.
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CITY OF ROUND ROCK, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
C. GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES (CONTINUED)
Capital Projects Funds - The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be

used for the acquisition or construction of capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary
funds).

There are twelve groups of funds within the Capital Projects Fund which account for the activities related
to various capital improvements projects as follows:

— Streets and Drainage

— 2004 General Obligation Bonds

— Park Development

— 2007 Series Certificates of Obligation
— 2002 Series General Obligation Bonds
— Self-Financed Construction

— Convention Center Complex Fund

— Round Rock Transportation and Economic Development Corporation Project
— Transit Fund

— Tourism Development Fund

— 2007 General Obligation Bond Fund
— Venue Tax Projects Fund

The Round Rock Transportation and Economic Development Corporation capital projects fund, the Self-
Financed construction fund and the 2007 Series General Obligation Bonds are considered major funds in
the fund financial statements. The Round Rock Transportation and Economic Development Corporation
fund accounts for transportation system improvements funded by sales tax revenues. The Self-Financed
Construction fund accounts for the costs of authorized general capital improvements and facilities.
Financing is provided by general government resources. The 2007 Series GO Bonds fund accounts for
street, traffic safety and sidewalk improvement projects, parks and recreation facilities, public safety
facilities and improvements, municipal office facilities and public works improvements.

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

The Proprietary Funds are used to account for the City's ongoing organizations and activities that are
similar to those found in the private sector. The measurement focus is upon capital maintenance and upon
determination of net income, financial position and cash flows. The City maintains the following
Proprietary Fund types.

The Enterprise Fund is used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the governing body is that the costs
(expenses including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing
basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges. The City's Enterprise Fund consists of
the Water and Sewer Utility Fund and the Golf Course Fund. These funds are primarily supported by
user charges.
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CITY OF ROUND ROCK, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

E. OTHER FUND TYPES

Internal Service Fund - The Internal Service Fund is used to account for the financing of goods or
services provided by one department or agency to other City departments or agencies on a cost-plus basis.

The City's Internal Service Fund is the Self-Funded Health Insurance Fund, which is used to account for
the activities of the City's self-funded health insurance program.

Agency Fund - The Agency Fund is purely custodial (assets equal liabilities) and thus does not involve
measurement of results of operations. The Agency Fund is the Public Improvement Districts Fund.

F. NON-CURRENT GOVERNMENTAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES

GASB Statement No. 34 eliminated the presentation of account groups, but provides for these records to
be maintained and incorporates the information into the governmental activities column in the
government-wide statement of net position.

G. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
Government-wide Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when
a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as
soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Fund Financial Statements

In the fund financial statements, all governmental funds are accounted for using a modified accrual basis
of accounting. Governmental funds use the current financial resources measurement focus. Under this
basis, revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they become measurable and available.
Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in which the fund liability is incurred, if
measurable.

Governmental Funds

Revenue Recognition

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues
are recorded when deemed both measurable and available. Measurable means that the amount of the
transaction can be determined. Available means the amount of the transaction is collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. For this
purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the
current fiscal year.
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CITY OF ROUND ROCK, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
G. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

Governmental Funds (continued)

Revenue Recognition (continued)

Property tax revenues are recognized when they become available. In this case, available means when
due, or past due and receivable within the current period and collected within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Such time thereafter shall not exceed
60 days. Tax collections expected to be received subsequent to the 60-day availability period are reported
as deferred revenue.

Hotel taxes, franchise fees, and special assessments are recorded when susceptible to accrual, both
measurable and available. Sales taxes collected and held by the State at year-end on behalf of the City are
also recognized as revenue. Licenses and permits, charges for services, fines and forfeitures and other
revenues (except earnings on investments) are recorded as revenues when received in cash because they
are generally not measurable until actually received. Earnings on investments are recorded on the accrual
basis in all funds. Unrealized gains or losses on investments are also recognized in accordance with
GASB Statement No. 31.

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues, the legal and contractual
requirements of the individual grant programs are used for guidance. Monies received are generally
unrestricted as to purpose of expenditure and are revocable only for failure to comply with prescribed
compliance requirements. These resources are recognized as revenues at the time of receipt, or sooner, if
the susceptible to accrual criteria are met.

The City reports deferred revenue on its fund financial statements. Deferred revenues arise when
potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable" and "available" criteria for recognition in the
current period. Deferred revenues also arise when the City receives resources before it has a legal claim
to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In
subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met or when the City has a legal claim to
the resources, the liability for deferred revenue is removed from the balance sheet and revenue is
recognized.

Expenditure Recognition

The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial resources
(expenditures) rather than expenses. Most expenditures are measurable and are recorded when the related
fund liability is incurred except for unmatured principal and interest on governmental long-term debt
which are recognized when paid. Allocations of costs, such as depreciation and amortization, are not
recognized in the governmental funds’ fund financial statements.
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CITY OF ROUND ROCK, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
G. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)
Proprietary and Agency Funds

In the fund financial statements and the government-wide statements, proprietary and agency funds utilize
the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the
accounting period in which they are earned and become measurable. Expenses are recorded in the
accounting period incurred, if measurable.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of
the water and sewer fund, the golf course fund and the internal service fund are charges to customers for
sales and services. Operating expenses for the enterprise funds and internal service fund include the cost
of sales and service, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenue and expenses
not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

The proprietary funds follow GAAP prescribed by GASB and all Financial Accounting Standards
Board’s standards issued prior to November 30, 1989. Subsequent to this date, the City accounts for its
proprietary funds as prescribed by the GASB.

H. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

In accordance with GASB Statement 9, for reporting purposes, the City has developed a definition of cash
equivalents. Cash equivalents are demand deposit account balances, investments with the State
Investment Pool, repurchase agreements, obligations of the United States government and its agencies,
commercial paper and certificates of deposit with original maturities of three months or less.

I. INVESTMENTS

All investments are presented at fair value. The fair value of U.S. Government Securities is based upon
discounted future cash flows. The fair value of the positions in the state investment pools is the same as
the value of the pool shares.

J. INVENTORIES AND PREPAID ITEMS
Inventories of supplies for all funds are valued at cost. The consumption method is used to account for
inventories. Under the consumption method, an expenditure is recognized when inventory items are used.

Cost is determined for inventories of supplies on the first-in, first-out method.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items (other current assets) in both the government-wide and fund financial statements.
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CITY OF ROUND ROCK, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
K. JOINT VENTURE

Joint venture represents the City’s equity interest calculated in accordance with the agreement for
Brushy Creek Regional Utility Authority (BCRUA). The City’s initial investment in this joint venture
was recorded at cost. The City shares in the operating results in this joint venture so the City adjusts its
equity interest by the amount of its participating share of the joint venture’s change in net position.

L. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets are stated at historical cost. Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred.
Improvements and betterments, which extend the useful lives of assets, are capitalized.

The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the capital assets associated with a fund are determined
by the fund’s measurement focus. The minimum capitalization threshold is any individual item with a
total cost greater than $ 5,000 and a useful life of at least 5 years. Contributed assets are recorded at the
estimated fair market value at the time received.

Public domain capital assets (infrastructure) have been capitalized. Infrastructure consists of certain
improvements other than buildings, including roads, curbing, gutters, streets and sidewalks and drainage
systems.

In the government-wide statements, depreciation of plant and equipment classified by functional
components is provided by the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. Estimated useful
lives are as follows:

Buildings 30 — 50 years
Improvements other than buildings 10 —40 years
Machinery and equipment 5 —10years

When capital assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, a gain or loss on disposal of assets is recognized.

In the fund financial statements, because of the application of the current financial resources focus and the
use of modified accrual accounting for governmental funds, depreciation is only recognized for the
Enterprise Funds.

For the Enterprise Fund's capital assets, interest is capitalized on construction costs. The amount of
interest cost capitalized for assets constructed with tax-exempt borrowings is equal to the cost of
borrowing, less interest earned on related interest-bearing investments acquired with proceeds of the
related tax-exempt borrowings. The total amount of interest expense incurred and expensed was
$3,772,633.
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CITY OF ROUND ROCK, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
M. LONG-TERM DEBT

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums and
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the
effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.
Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as
other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources
while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Hotel Occupancy Tax Revenue Bonds were issued to fund the City’s portion of the construction of a
convention center complex. The project costs were shared with a private corporation in accordance with
the Master Agreement Regarding Convention Center Development. The Hotel Occupancy Tax Revenue
Bonds are to be repaid from the hotel tax revenues.

Loans from the State Infrastructure Bank have been received to fund transportation improvements. The
loans are to be repaid from revenues of the Round Rock Transportation and Economic Development

Corporation.

Revenue bonds, which have been issued to fund capital projects of the Enterprise Fund are to be repaid
from net revenues of the utility systems.

Sales tax revenue bonds have been issued to fund transportation improvements. The bonds are to be
repaid from revenues of the Round Rock Transportation and Economic Development Corporation.

N. ACCRUED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
Unpaid Compensated Absences
Each employee may accumulate a total of two years vacation eligibility. Employees are paid for the

accumulated vacation upon termination. Effective January 1, 1994, a liability for sick pay is not recorded
since sick pay does not vest.
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CITY OF ROUND ROCK, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
N. ACCRUED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)
Unpaid Compensated Absences (continued)

The City accrues a liability for accumulated vacation and sick leave benefits, which meet the following
criteria:

— The City's obligation to fund accumulated vacation and sick leave benefits is
attributable to employees' services already rendered

— The obligation relates to rights that vest or accumulate

— Payment of the compensation is probable

— The amount can be reasonably estimated

All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for
example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.

Other Post-employment Benefits

The City provides its retirees the opportunity to maintain health insurance coverage by participating in the
City’s self insurance plan. The City accrues a liability for the annual required contribution, as determined
by an actuary, less the actual cost incurred on a pay as you go basis on the government-wide and
proprietary fund financial statements. The actual cost recorded in the governmental fund financial
statements is the cost of the health benefits incurred on behalf of the retirees less the premiums collected
from the retirees.

O. TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN FUNDS

Short-term advances between funds are accounted for in the appropriate interfund receivable and payable
accounts. All legally authorized transfers are appropriately treated as transfers and are included in the
results of operations of both governmental and proprietary funds. Nonrecurring or non-routine transfers
of equity between funds — for example, contribution of capital assets to a proprietary fund or transfers of
residual balances of discontinued funds to other funds - are accounted for as transfers.

As a rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide statement of net
position. Exceptions to this rule are cost reimbursement transactions between the enterprise fund and
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